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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS RAISED DURING THE CALL FOR TENDERS FOR THE
PROVISION OF STRATEGIC COMMUNICATIONS, EDITORIAL SUPPORT, GRAPHICAL, DIGITAL AND EVENTS-RELATED COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES - REF. SJU/LC/0148-CFT
	N°
	Subject
	Reference in documents
	Questions
	Answers

	1
	Evidence and information to be provided/Case studies
22/02/2019
	Tender specif. – Section 4.3.3
And 

Annex 4 to the Tender specifications – Case study 1

	1. Section 4.3.3 of the tender specifications states that tenderers should provide “Reference of the last 10 assignments”. Are tenderers expected to provide references for precisely 10 projects, no less and no more?

2. Section 4.3.3 of the tender specifications lists - for each lot - the profiles necessary to perform the contract. Are tenderers invited to propose additional profiles, if deemed necessary?
3. The Lot 1 case study is not to exceed four pages. Do you expect the case study to contain any content additional to the infographic and the time and division of tasks among staff members?
4. The Lot 2 case study description refers to “a digital tool to be used at the workshop, as outlined in the case study scenario for Lot 3”. However, the Lot 3 case study scenario includes no outline of the digital tool and makes no reference to a workshop. Could you please clarify the scope of this digital tool?
	1. Tenderers are requested to submit no less than 10 assignments. Only 10 projects will be taken into account for the evaluation, as indicated in the tender specifications.
2. Tenderers can indicate additional profiles, but only those listed in the tender specifications will be taken into account for the evaluation, because they correspond to the hypothetical scenario drawn up for this call for tenders. 
Should you consider that other profiles may be of interest for the SJU during contract implementation, you are invited to submit a reference to it, however these profiles may never replace the profiles requested in the tender specifications.

3. As indicated in Annex 4 to the tender specifications, criteria for drafting the case study are the following: 

· The text, graphics and any statistics used should allow audiences with no knowledge of aviation or ATM, such as EU and national policy and decision makers, to understand SESAR’s contribution to the environment in a simple yet effective way.

· The tone of the infographic should be informative but should avoid EU jargon.

· The infographic should respect the current SJU visual guidelines: https://www.sesarju.eu/newsroom/use-sesar-trademark-and-logo
It must be noted that the evaluation of the tenders is carried out also in the light of award criterion 4 (Analysis of the case study per lot – page 27 of the tender specifications), which includes the “understanding of the requirements”. It is up to the tenderers to assess the most relevant information to be included in the case study and this will be part of the evaluation.  
4. The SJU would like to point out that the “event” indicated in the description of the Case study for Lot 3 corresponds to the “workshop” indicated in the description of Lot 2 Case study.  In the part of the description of Case study 2 quoted in the question, where stating “as outlined in the case study scenario for Lot 3”, reference is made to the workshop/event and not to the “digital tool”.

	2
	Invoicing/clerical mistake in the financial offer form/Case studies  

22/02/2019
	Draft FWC contract
Financial offer form – Lot 3

Annex 4 to the Tender specifications – Case study 3


	1. What is the invoicing procedure for costs related to event organization, as venue rental, catering services, audio-visual equipment, hostesses, local transfers, travels and accommodation of participants, … (example given: costs and budget packages mentioned in the text of the case study for lot 3)?
2. Taking into account Article II.20 of the draft Service framework contract, we would be grateful if you could clarify how reimbursements are governed by the contract.
3. The unit associated to budget line related to “preparatory (2h) / coordination meeting at SJU offices” is “/100 items”. Is it a clerical mistake?

4. Regarding page limitation related to case study for LOT 3 (4 pages), do you confirm that we can introduce annexes for documents such as timetable, graphic design examples, rundown…?
	1. The framework contract is implemented via specific contracts. In order to determine the subject of these specific contracts the SJU sends a request for service describing its needs. The costs indicated in the question could be:

a. Precisely indicated in the request for service
b. Included in a global request for service (e.g. the request to organise an event can include building up and dismantling a stand, catering, waiter-service and cleaning). In this case the contractor shall submit an all-inclusive technical/financial offer.

According to Article I.6.2 the contractor can ask for Interim payments. The modalities (percentage, timing, etc.) of payments shall be included in specific contracts and depends on the services to be provided. Usually the costs indicated in the question are covered by interim payments.

2. According to Article I.1 (a) of the Framework contract, “The provisions set out in the special conditions take precedence over those in the other parts of the FWC”.  Article I.5.3 of the special conditions, “Reimbursement of expenses is not applicable to this FWC”. In case some costs are to be anticipated by the contractor, it can ask for interim payments (please see reply to question 6).
3. We can confirm it is a clerical mistake. The Unit associated is “EUR/person/meeting”. A new version of the Annex 5 to the tender specifications is now available at www.sesarju.eu/procurement.
4. The tenderers should summarise all the information needed in a number of pages as much as possible close to the 4 pages requested in the description of the case studies. No annexes are requested/foreseen.     

	3
	Request for additional details on services to be provided

25/02/2019
	Tender specifications – Section 2.3.1


	Is it possible to indicate the frequency and average volume of print runs print-runs indicated in the description of LOT 1, the dispatch and transportation of printed material? 
	Print runs per publication can be between 250 and 500 on yearly basis. Such publications are to be delivered either at SJU’s premises or other places specified in the request for service triggering the procedure for the signature of specific contracts. 

	4
	Clarification on the deadline

25/02/2019


	Invitation to tender – Point 2
	If the shipping receipt of the tender will be constituted by the date of dispatch does it mean it must be sent before 11:30 am on 22/3?


	We confirm that the tender must be sent via registered post, private courier or in-hand delivered before 11:30 a.m. on 22/03/2019. If the tender is not in-hand delivered at SJU’s premises, as indicated in the Invitation to tender, tenderer are requested to notify via email to procurement@sesarju.eu on the day that they have sent a tender.    

	5
	Evidence to be provided with the legal entity form

25/02/2019
	Invitation to tender – Point 7 (b)/ Tender specifications – Section 4.3.1


	According to Point 7 (b) of the Invitation to tenders (administrative offer), a legal entity form is required with its supporting documentation for each tenderer. Could you please confirm that the above mentioned evidence is the same as the one required (and described) in section 4.3.1 of the tender specifications?

	Section 4.3.1 (1) of the tender specifications makes a cross reference to the Invitation to tender (point 7 (b)). Actually, the latter refers to the same evidence as the one indicated in Point 4.3.1 (1). We would like to draw the attention of the tenderers to the fact that Point 7 (b) of the Invitation to tender lists all the evidence to be provided for exclusion and selection criteria (legal, financial and technical capacity), and not only the one requested as supporting document to the LEF (Legal Entity Form). 
Please note that member states are responsible for determining and issuing the documents to accept as evidence. For this reason, we invite tenderers to consult https://ec.europa.eu/tools/ecertis/search to verify which document(s) can be obtained in the member state where the tenderer is based.    

	6
	Clarification on technical capacity
26/02/2019


	Tender specifications – Section 4.3.3


	Could you confirm that experience in delivering services in the aviation sector in particular will not become a requirement for participating in this call for tender?
	Experience in delivering/providing services in the aviation sector IS NOT one of the requirements to participate in this call for tender.

	7
	Case studies  
26/02/2019
	Annex 4 to the Tender specifications – Case study 3


	1. Case study Lot 3 - Could you kindly clarify if the tenderer can attach annexes to the case study? 

2. Case study Lot 3 - Could you please clarify if a financial offer for the case study must be provided indicating total number of man-days and proposed fixed total prices (as indicated in paragraph "2.7.2 Request for services"? 


	1. See above, Point 4 of the answer to question n. 2
2. It is sufficient to indicate the “man/days” for the profiles needed and listed in the “Financial offer” form. The prices must be indicated exclusively in the “Financial offer” form.

	8
	Content of the envelopes

and .pdf version of the tender 27/02/2019
	Invitation to tender Point 7 (c)
	According to our understanding, the third inner envelope will contain the technical offer and the CVs. Based on the specifications, the technical offer should have 1 original and 3 copies and the CVs should have 1 original and 3 copies, as well. The whole offer will be copied onto a USB stick and the CVs folder will be separated and labelled as “Human Resources”. Please confirm.


	We confirm that the third inner envelope must include the technical offer (1 original and 3 copies) and an additional envelope labelled “Human resources” including the CVs (1 original and 3 copies). This will guarantee that personal data of the proposed team members are managed in compliance with Regulation 1720/2018 and SJU’s privacy statement. 

The full offer should be uploaded on a USB stick (ideally in separate folders maintaining the distinction between cover letter, administrative, financial and technical offer). 

CVs must be placed in a separate folder labelled “Human resource”.  

	9
	Financial offer form
27/02/2019
	Annex 5 – Financial offer form
	1. Lot 3 - Annex 5 Financial Form - could you kindly clarify what you mean by the item "Preparatory (2 hour) / coordination meeting at SJU offices" and what exactly must be quoted?
2. Lot 3 - Could you kindly clarify how the Contracting Authority will cover the costs which are not included in the price list (for instance catering, venue etc.)? 


	1. Preparatory meetings are organised between the SJU and the contractor in order to discuss progress towards deliverables, allow for clarifications and swift decision making on the implementation of a given activity. The number of preparatory/ coordination meetings needed will be determined by the specific contracts that will be signed as part of the implementation of the Framework contract following requests for services by the SJU (see Sections 2.6.1 and 2.7 of the Tender specifications). 
The Financial offer form must be filled in with a fixed price per meeting  (irrespective of the requested number of participants)   
2. Please see above Point 1 of the answer to question n. 2


	10
	Legal entity and Financial identification forms
28/02/2019
	Invitation to tender Point 7 (b)
	Point 7 (b) of the Invitation to tender includes non-functional links to web pages for the Legal Entities form and Financial identification forms. Can you send us these forms?


	Legal entity forms and Financial Identification forms are available in several languages at the following links:
https://ec.europa.eu/info/publications/legal-entities_en
https://ec.europa.eu/info/publications/financial-identification_en

	11
	Content of the Human Resources envelope

01/03/2019
	Invitation to tender Point 7 (c)
	We have understood that each CV must be included in  separate envelopes (i.e.: Key Staff 1 in Envelope 1, Key Staff 2 in Envelope 2, Key staff 3 in Envelope 3).Could you please confirm that our understanding is correct?


	We cannot confirm your interpretation. All the CVs can be included in one (1) envelope labelled “Human resources” (1 original and 3 copies).

Please see above the answer to the question n. 8. 



	12
	Experience in data protection

04/03/2019
	Tender specifications – Section 4.3.3


	Section 4.3.3 of the tender specifications under ii.6 say that “at least one of the members of the team shall have at least 2 years of experience implementing privacy and data protection principles”. Is our assumption correct that this can be a separate team member and that this requirement must not necessarily be met by one of the other profiles listed under ii.1 – ii.5?

	In accordance with Section 4.3.3 (ii.6), in order to facilitate the participation to this call, the SJU requests that the expert in data protection is either: 
· a team member corresponding to one of the “necessary profiles” listed from ii.1 – ii.5; 

or
· an additional (separate) team member.

	13
	Level of English knowledge 

04/03/2019
	Tender specifications – Section 4.3.3
	According to point 2.6 of the tender specifications “The tender must include a list of persons composing the proposed team, including back-up persons. All members of the team who are in contact with the SJU must be able to work in English. See section 4.3.3 for more details of the required technical capacity” .
We understand all the team members in contact with the SJU must have the knowledge to work in English according to their tasks. For example, it is essential that a copywriter and a project/contract manager have a C2 level, but for other professionals, such as graphic designer, video editor, sound engineer, web designer and multimedia developer, it is enough if they can interact in English. Is that correct?


	According to Section 4.3.3 of the tender specifications, for all Lots, “All team members should have native-level or equivalent of English (spoken and written)”. 
The knowledge of English at native or equivalent level is not a technical requirement for submitting an offer. 

However, it is mandatory that all team members are capable to work in English, circumstance that implies a good knowledge of the language (spoken and written).

 As underlined in the question, it is essential that major profiles have a native level (or equivalent) knowledge of English. 

Please note that, in any case, all team members must be capable to understand correctly the content of the requests and any observation by the SJU. 

Under no-circumstances, lack of understanding of English shall negatively impact the activity to be carried out as well as the quality of the deliverables. 

This element could be taken into account while evaluating the tender in view of the award criterion “Organisational aspects”. 

	14
	Content of the Human Resources envelope

05/03/2019
	Invitation to tender Point 7 (c)
	We have understood that each CV must be included in  separate envelopes (i.e.: Key Staff 1 in Envelope 1, Key Staff 2 in Envelope 2, Key staff 3 in Envelope 3). 

Could you please confirm that our understanding is correct?


	Please see above the answer to questions n. 8 and n. 11. 



	15
	
Electronic version of the tender on USB Stick 
06/03/2019
	Invitation to tender Point 5
	According to point 5 of the instructions to tenders, one copy of the offer in electronic format should be provided on a USB stick. 
Please clarify if a single USB stick containing the complete offer, including the Administrative, Technical and the Financial offer in separate folders should be provided, or if three separate USB sticks, one containing the Administrative offer, one containing the Technical offer and one containing the Financial offer should be included inside the related envelope.

In the case one single USB stick should be provided, inside which envelope should it be placed?


	As indicated in the reply to question n. 8, the full offer can be uploaded on only 1 USB stick. The electronic version of the tender should be ideally divided in separate folders maintaining the distinction between cover letter, administrative, financial and technical offer. The folder “Human resources” must be clearly labelled. 

The USB stick can be either included in the outer envelope (with the cover letter) or in the envelope containing the technical offer.  


	16
	
Promotional items
06/03/2019
	Annex 5 – Financial form - LOT 3
	Could you please clarify some items appearing in the financial form for Lot 3?

· Printing (600 dpi) of banners (rollers) : Could you precise the size (60*160 – 85*200 – 100*200 – other) ?

· Metallic badges: Could you precise the diameter ?

· Pins: Could you precise the diameter?

· Branded folders: A4 cardboard with flaps? Only branded cover or recto-verso?


	· Printing (600 dpi) of banners (rollers): the size usually requested is 85*200 (other sizes could be ordered depending on specific needs)
· Metallic badges: the question refers to diameter. In reality the SJU usually requests for rectangular metallic badges sized  8x4 centimetres (see the reply to question n. 18 as well) 

· Pins: pins’ diameter is about 0.5 centimetres
· Branded folders: the most common size requested is A4 cardboard with flaps 

	17
	
Meetings
06/03/2019
	Annex 5 – Financial form - LOT 3
	Lot 3 Financial offer – In reference to the item "EUR/person/meeting" could you please clarify if the quotation should also include travels and accommodation costs of one person taking part in the coordination meeting at SJU offices?

	The meetings indicated in Annex 5 are those the SJU considers can be arranged only at SJU’s premises (e.g. the kick of meeting after the signature of the Framework contract; meetings for the coordination of the activities for specific contracts, etc). 

The price offered must be an all-inclusive price per meeting for the participation of the contractor.

It is possible that other meetings are arranged via video/tele conference, but they ARE NOT those indicated in Annex 5 –LOT 3. 

	18
	
Promotional items
06/03/2019
	Annex 5 – Financial form - LOT 3
	Could you please clarify the difference between metallic badges and branded pins?


	Metallic badges: they are usually used during events or workshops, an item on which to indicate names, company where the person is employed, etc.

Branded pins: they are little promotional pins to be personalised (e.g. in terms of shape, colour and/or printing design). 

	19
	
Indicative timetable
07/03/2019
	Tender Specifications - Section 3.1 
	Could you please confirm whether the indicative timetable is still being maintained (Section 3.1) e.g. 6 days before for final clarifications, 22nd March for final deadline? 


	The indicative timetable remains unchanged. 
Only in case of substantial changes to the tender specifications, a corrigendum is to be published. Under those circumstances, a new version of the Tender Specifications is uploaded among the Call for tender’s documents (www.sesarju.eu/procurement).

	20
	
Profiles for proposed team / relevant professional experience for requested profiles / 10 references to previous relevant project / contracts in the same field / non-EU (or EFTA) based subcontractor 
07/03/2019
	Annex 3, 5 and 6 to the tender specifications / Tender specifications – Section 3.2 / Draft Framework contract
	1. Does the team need to include a dedicated social media manager? One is referenced in Annex 5, but not Annex 6 or the technical specifications.

2. The annex 6 requires staff to have spent 2 years ‘in the role concerned’. Does this have to be as an employee of our company (the tenderer), or can the two years include previous employment with a separate company in a similar function?
3. Annex 3 requests 10 references for over €10,000. Is this per year, per month or on a project basis?

4. Annex 3 requests 10 references. If we use a subcontractor for part of services provided, should the 10 references be a combination of the lead company’s references and the subcontractor’s references?

5. If a subcontractor is not in the EU or EFTA (e.g. Bosnia and Herzegovina), how will the SJU make a decision on exceptional circumstances?


	1. The profiles to be considered as mandatory and to be indicated in the staff form as team members are exclusively those listed in Annex 6.
 As stated in the tender specifications, Section 4.5.2, “Annex 5 (Financial offer annexed to these Tender specifications) is aimed at drafting a hypothetical scenario on the basis of the profiles/items most frequently ordered by the SJU over the last 4 years”.  The “social media manager” profile has been requested as an additional profile in some requests for services during the execution of previous similar Framework contracts. This is the reason why it is in the list of items/profiles for which the SJU requests a price. However it IS NOT a mandatory profile to be included in the team composition. Please note that all the fields of Annex 5 (financial form) must be filled in.
2. The professional experience may be gained performing similar functions in other companies.

3. Reference is made to € 10.000,00 per project

4. We would like to highlight that for selection criteria, they are generally applied on the candidate or tenderer as a whole (one legal entity, several entities submitting a joint request to participate or tender, or one or several entities and subcontractors) and they may apply individually only where it is relevant in view of their nature. For technical and financial capacity, it must be assumed that the very purpose of subcontracting and joint requests to participate or tenders is to come up to the required minimum capacity level. For this reason, it is possible to provide evidence on professional capacity (part of the selection criteria) resulting from a combination of tenderer’s and subcontractors’ references.  
5. The Contracting authority, unless specific circumstances to be clearly indicated to the tenderer (and to awarded tenderer/contractor), cannot impose limitations to subcontracting. However, compliance with all exclusion, selection and award criteria must be guaranteed by the tenderer (and awarded tenderer/contractors). Please note that all requirements in terms of protection of personal data as described in the call documentation must be fulfilled as well. In accordance with Point 7 (c) of the invitation to tender, the way compliance with data protection requirements is guaranteed shall be part of the Data Protection dedicated section of the technical offer.

	21
	
Projects/references to be indicated as an evidence to professional capacity
08/03/2019
	Annex 3 to the Tender Specifications 
	Are tenderers only allowed to fill in the excel sheet concerning the 10 references on previous experiences or can they also explain more in detail about these references in a separate Word document?
	It is mandatory to fill in Annex 3 to the tender specifications. If deemed relevant, the tenderer can add details in other parts of its offer. Please note that, as indicated in the reply 1) to question n. 1, tenderers are requested to submit no less than 10 assignments. Only 10 projects will be taken into account for the evaluation, as indicated in the tender specifications. 


	22
	New!!

Power of attorney and Mandate Connsortium coordinator
12/03/2019
	Invitation to tender – Point 7 (b)
Annex 2 to the tender specifications
	In the Invitation to Tender document, it is stated that the Administrative offer shall contain a valid “Power of Attorney”. However, in the Annexes provided, we find an “Annex 2 – Mandate Consortium Coordinator”. Should we consider the Mandate to be the same as a Power of Attorney? 
Or are you expecting tenderers to send both (a Mandate AND a Power of Attorney)?


	“Power of attorney” and Annex 2 (mandate from the members of the consortium to the coordinators) must be interpreted as 2 different documents. 
The “Power of attorney” is aimed at proving that the natural person signing tender documents and acting on behalf of each single member of the consortium is legally entitled to do so. The document to be submitted may vary on the basis of the applicable national legislation (e.g. a copy of the decision of the board; an article of the establishment act or statutes of the company appointing a person as its representative; an recent extract of the national enterprises’ register in which the name of the person with power of attorney is clearly mentioned, etc.). 

The “Mandate Consortium Coordinator” is a private proxy, valid exclusively for the call for tender concerned, signed by each member of the consortium for delegating the leading company. This document must be signed by a natural person acting on behalf of the delegating company. Power of attorney of the last-mentioned natural person must result from the above-mentioned “Power of attorney” document.
Given the above, it is necessary to provide both documents in case of joint tenders.  

	23
	New!!

Projects/references to be indicated as an evidence to professional capacity
08/03/2019
	Tender Specifications – Section 4.3.2
	1. Financial capacity of a consortium is evaluated per each company or is it evaluated for the consortium as a whole? 
2. If it is a newly created company it won't have balance sheets for two years nor the statement of overall turnover during the last three financial years. If the company is part of a consortium, would that be a problem?


	1. In case of joint tenders, the financial capacity, being part of the selection criteria, is generally applied on the candidate or tenderer as a whole (one legal entity, several entities submitting a joint request to participate or tender, or one or several entities and subcontractors). As above indicated (please see reply n. 4 to question n. 20), selection criteria may apply individually only where it is relevant in view of their nature. For technical and financial capacity, it must be assumed that the very purpose of subcontracting and joint requests to participate or tenders is to come up to the required minimum capacity level.
2. In view of the fact that start-ups cannot provide neither balance sheets nor statements on their turnover, the contracting authority may consider this case falling under the “exceptional reasons” mentioned under Section 4.3.2 (Evidence) of the Tender Specifications, allowing it to ask the tenderer to prove its financial capacity by other means. In case of start-ups, a detailed business plan might replace the requested evidence.    
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